
 

 

                                                      MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
                                CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
                                    6801 Delmar Blvd. 
                         University City, Missouri 63130 
                                  October 10, 2016 
                                             6:30 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
 

B. ROLL CALL  
 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

D. PROCLAMATIONS 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
1. September 26, 2016 Study session minutes 
2. September 26, 2016 Regular session minutes 

 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
1. Peggy Shamleffer nominated for appointment to the Board of Trustees Retirement Boards 

by Mayor Welsch, replacing Matthew Fillo. 
 

G. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Approval of liquor license for Cicero’s, 6691 Delmar Blvd, with a change in management 

VOTE REQUIRED 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Bill 9294 – An ordinance amending Section 355.040 – disable parking, Chapter 355 Traffic 

Code, of the University City Municipal Code, to revise traffic regulation as provided herein. 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS  
RESOLUTIONS 

 
BILLS 
1. BILL 9295 - An ordinance amending Chapter 2.52 of the University City Municipal code 

relating the Committee for Access and Local Origination Programming, by repealing Section 
2.52.050 thereof, relating to membership and appointment, and enacting in lieu thereof a 
new section to be known as “Section 2.52.050 membership and appointment,” thereby 
amending said section so as to remove Charter Communications; referred to as the “The 
Company”. 
 

N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 



 

 

 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 Evaluation of City Council Employees:  City Manager and City Clerk - requested by 
Councilmembers Carr and Crow. 
DISCUSSION and VOTE 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 



5 
 

 
 

UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
5th Floor of City Hall 6801 Delmar Blvd 

September 26, 2016 
 
 

The City Council Study Session was held in the Council Chamber, 5th floor of City Hall, on 
Monday, September 26, 2016. Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 5 :30 
p.m.  In addition to the Mayor the following members of the Council were present: 

 
Councilmember Paulette Carr  
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson  
Councilmember Michael Glickert 
Councilmember Rod Jennings 
 

Councilmember Crow was excused. 
 
Mayor Welsch opened the study session at 5:31 p.m.  She asked if anyone had any changes they 
would be suggesting for the agenda tonight.   
 
Councilmember Carr said she would be adding the reappointment of Luther Baker to the Park 
Commission to the agenda. 
 
Mayor Welsch said she would be adding the swearing in of John Owens to the Board of 
Adjustment and will note that Jeff Mishkin was sworn in to the Traffic Commission at City Hall by 
the City Clerk. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson said he wanted to make a request to move the Roll Call vote to go 
into a Closed Session to the beginning of the agenda because of possible technical difficulties 
where Councilmember Crow’s connection might be lost.   
 
Mayor Welsch noted that each amendment to the agenda would be dealt with separately at the 
meeting. 
 
Mayor Welsch then turned the meeting over to City Manager Lehman Walker. 
 
Mr. Walker said the purpose of this study session was for the Green Practices Commission (GPC) 
to provide an update to the University City Council. 
 
Mr. Walker said Lois Sechrist from the Green Practices Commission would begin the commission’s 
presentation. 
 
Ms. Sechrist provided a brief history of the Green Practices Commission and their sustainability, 
mission, vision and values.  She stated that the members worked on five categories:  
Econsystems/Habitats, Education/Communication/Advocacy, Energy, Waste/Resource 
Conservation and Water/Stormwater.   
     Ms. Sechrist said the general concept of sustainability means that we look toward the future 
with the decisions that the committee has made today.  This means the financial sustainability, the 
environmental sustainability, as well as the social impact.   
     The members presented in the five categories of the commission’s work.  The first presenter 
was Dr. Dianne Benjamin who talked about Ecosystems and Habitats.   
 
 
 

October 10, 2016 E-1-1



6 
 

 
Dr. Benjamin said the strategic plan across all the categories looked at three different areas: 

• public spaces, municipal- owned property, schools, libraries, etc.   
• residences, apartment buildings, places where people live 
• businesses and other privately-owned property 

 
The program the GPC endorsed and promoted is “Bring Conservation Home”.  The commission 
has been instrumental in having three gardens pollinatory and monarch gardens installed around 
the City.   
     Their first goal is planting native plants in public spaces in order to reduce City’s need to mow.  
The second goal is to work with U City In Bloom and the Community Development Department in 
increasing the native mix of plantings on municipal-owned property.  The third goal is  to continue 
to promote the Bring Conservation Home program.   
 
Scott Edison spoke on education and communication advocacy as another one of the 
commission’s objectives.  The main points on the advocacy side were special-interest 
presentations and collaboration with groups inside and  outside of the City.  The commission is 
presently working on a commercial recycling task force that has been set up to work with business 
owners in University City.  The commission has worked on outreach to residents and 
communication through multiple different means.   
 
Councilmember Jennings asked if the commission was working with the school system?   
 
Councilmember Glickert spoke on the organization “Lions Against Litter” that he and 
Councilmember Jennings are involved with and suggested that the commission might also work 
with this organization.   
 
Mayor Welsch asked if the GPC worked in coloration with other environmental groups in the City 
other than U City In Bloom, like the Green Center, the River des Peres Watershed Coalition, etc.  
Mr. Edison noted they do.   
 
Tim Michels spoke on energy.  He noted GPC accomplishments in this area as assisting the City in 
energy efficiency and the reduction of greenhouse gases.  They helped the City to secure a loan 
from the state to invest in energy efficiency; and introduced to the City the PACE programs and the 
100 percent financing that is available for projects that show they can provide positive cash-flow in 
terms of energy efficiency.  Mr. Michels said the main goal of the GPC is to set a net-zero energy 
goals for all of City buildings, reaching those goals by 2025.  They encourage the use of LED bulbs 
in all City owned street lights and encourage the City to keep trying to acquire Ameren-owned 
street lights.  The GPC encourages the City to look at electric- powered vehicles.  The commission 
would like the City to include a ½ -time staff position to work on projects to save energy for the City 
and residents. 
 
Councilmember Carr inquired about the PACE program, asking if the City qualified as a clean 
energy city.  Mr. Michels said he assumed the City was but was not aware as that being a 
requirement for the PACE program.  She asked about how the financing worked.  Mr. Michels 
stated there are a variety of ways to do it but if it is done as a tax, you will not be able to depreciate 
it by this method. 
 
Jenny Wendt, the City staff liaison spoke on waste and resource conservation.  She said the 
commission has worked with the Loop to make it a “green” dining district by working with 
businesses commitment to recycling.  They are working with about 90 businesses, including 
apartment complexes and have 60 of them on board and will continue to educate and encourage 
the remaining businesses to become part of this alliance.  The commission has promoted 
electronic recycling.  The next project they have worked on is the City’s recycling area, making it 
cleaner and more attractive to residents.  The commission will continue to try to educate people to 
recycle. 
 
 
 

October 10, 2016 E-1-2



7 
 

 
Lois Sechrist spoke on water/stormwater.  She spoke on the need of collaboration with 
communities upstream and downstream, with the River des Peres Watershed Coalition, and with 
the Deer Creek Alliance in order to understand the issues and how you can mitigate our storm 
water problems.  The commission will continue to encourage and educate property owners to 
maintain storm water on their site by use of rain gardens and rain barrels.   
 
Councilmember Carr asked about the pavement on Midland that directed the water onto Cornell 
and about talking with the County about the need to regard. She also spoke of  another issue of 
the run-off from Lewis Park onto Yale.  She asked if the GPC could look at creating a storm 
water master plan.   
 
Mayor Welsch asked if the commission has worked with City staff on water quality as in the past 
there was water run-off from the maintenance facility on Pennsylvania into the River des Peres. 
 
Ms. Sechrist introduced remaining commission members, Robert Elgin and Richard Juang. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:25 p.m., 
 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

October 10, 2016 E-1-3



Fall 2016  
Green Practices  

Commission Update  
to  

University City  
Council 

September 26, 2016 



Green Practices Commission: 
 

Dianne Benjamin 
Scott Eidson 

Bob Elgin 
Richard Juang 

Tim Michels 
 

Jenny Wendt, Staff Liaison 
Terry Crow, City Council Liaison 



Sustainability  
“Meeting the needs of the present 
without compromising the ability 
of future generations to meet their 
own needs.” 

- UN Brundtland Commission, 1983 



Mission 
The mission of the Green Practices Commission 
of University City is to encourage sustainable 
practices and programs that improve the health 
and quality of life of our community; restore and 
protect our natural resources; and strengthen 
our economy.   



Vision 
Our vision for University City is to a have a 
fully engaged community – City government, 
residents, students, business owners, and 
visitors that integrates sustainability into every 
decision made, every action taken. 



Values 
Our values are three-fold.   
• We believe there is a connection between social, 

environmental and economic well-being.   
• We believe we must be stewards of our community; 

therefore, this compels us to use our knowledge to 
enhance the quality of life of future generations.   

• We believe that local behavior and global development 
are linked: this requires that we think globally, as we act 
locally. 

Social 

Economic 

Environmental 



Commission Areas of Focus 
 

 Ecosystems/ Habitat 
 Education/ Communication/ Advocacy 
 Energy 
 Water/ Stormwater 
 Waste/ Resource Conservation 



Ecosystems/ Habitat 



Ecosystems/ Habitat goals: 
• Propose a written plan to U City for increasing low 

maintenance, native plantings for municipal-owned property 
and medians/roadways, by February 1, 2017. 

• Propose contract requirements for native plantings on 
municipal owned property and medians/roadways, in 
collaboration with U City in Bloom and Community 
Development, when UCB contract is renewed (date to be 
determined). 

• Continue to promote Bring Conservation Home and other 
native plantings (including pollinator gardens) and report 
these activities in GPC meeting minutes. 



Education/ Communication/ Advocacy 



 
• Ecotalks – Speakers at Green Practice Commission 

meetings 
• Collaboration with other communities 
• Recruit and engage subject matter experts 
• Seek input from University City citizens 
• Promote and Publicize Sustainability efforts 
• Collaborate with City staff on print and social media 
 
 

Education/Communication/Advocacy: 



Energy 



Energy action items:   
• Set Net-Zero Energy goal for all City buildings and 

operations by 2025 
• Replace Ameren street lights with City-owned LED lamps 
• Advance renewable energy opportunities  
• Keep building energy codes up to date for whole community 
• Improve City vehicle and equipment energy usage 
• Add City Staff position to foster energy-efficiency efforts (1/2 

FTE to start) 
• Maintain Carbon use reporting & documentation 
• Assist homeowners and businesses  with Net-Zero 

opportunities   
• Advance PACE program or have City manage Qualified 

Energy Conservation Bond for homeowners and businesses. 



Waste/ Resource Conservation 



 
• Promote and Increase Commercial Recycling 
• Increase education/promotion of Residential Recycling 
• Continue education of special waste disposal 
• Evaluate waste-to-energy opportunities 
• Reduce construction/demolition waste 
 
 

Waste/ Resource Conservation  Action Items: 



Water/ Stormwater 

©
20

10
 C

ha
rlo

tte
 S

ec
hr

is
t 

©
20

10
 C

ha
rlo

tte
 S

ec
hr

is
t 



 
• Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
• Rain Barrel education and sponsorship 
• Water Quality awareness 
• Stormwater management education for residents 

 
 

Water/Stormwater 



Thank You! 
 

University City  
Green Practices Commission 

 
 



1 
 

                                                      MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

September 26, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  

At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on the fifth floor of City  Hall, 
on Monday, September 26, 2016, Mayor Shelley Welsch, called the meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL  

 In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
 
   Councilmember Rod Jennings 
   Councilmember Paulette Carr  
   Councilmember Terry Crow (via video remote) 
   Councilmember Michael Glickert                                     
    Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
 
 Also in attendance was the City Manager, Lehman Walker.  
 
 Mayor Welsch announced that as a result of the participation via video remote, all votes on 
 ordinances will be conducted by Roll Call.  In the event a member loses their video connection 
 during a discussion they will not be allowed to take part in the vote. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Councilmember Carr requested that the reappointment of Luther Baker to the Park Commission 
be added to the agenda. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Carr's request carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Welsch requested that the agenda be amended to include the swearing in of John 
Owens to the Board of Adjustment, and note that Jeffrey Miskin was sworn in to the Traffic 
Commission at City Hall by the City Clerk. 
 
Voice vote on Mayor Welsch's request carried unanimously. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson made a motion that the Roll Call Vote to go into closed Session; 
(only the vote) be moved to the beginning of the meeting, to ensure Councilmember Crow's 
participation. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Point of Information:  Councilmember Crow stated that if Council votes to go into a Closed 
Session, one-third of the City will not be represented during the session, since he will be unable 
to participate.  His thought was that since this item is not time-sensitive, it did not need to be 
made at this time.   
 
Councilmember Jennings questioned whether the topic being discussed in the Closed Session 
even required a vote?  Mayor Welsch stated that no one knows what might happen during the 
session and we should not discuss that in open session.  Councilmember Jennings stated now 
that the City is using an outside company to assist with conducting its video conferencing, 
Councilmember Crow should be able to participate.  Mayor Welsch acknowledged that the City October 10, 2016 E-2-1



2 
 

was trying out a new system, and we are not anticipating any problems with tonight's 
connection. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Smotherson's motion failed. 

 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. September 12, 2016 Regular session minutes were moved for approval by Councilmember 
Jennings, was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

1. Luther Baker was nominated for reappointment to the Park Commission by Councilmember 
Carr, wasseconded by Councilmember Glickert and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

G. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
1. John Owens was sworn in to the Board of Adjustment. 
2. Jeffrey Miskin was sworn in to the Traffic Commission at City Hall by the City Clerk. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse, University City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan expressed concerns regarding the overhead wires associated with the Loop trolley; 
traffic conditions at the roundabout; inadequate street sweeping services; landscaping issues 
associated with the Laclede Gas upgrades; and the amount of taxpayer dollars spent on the 
temporary Police Station and Social House, while there are so many significant needs 
throughout the City that are being ignored.  
 
Joe Adams, 924 Wild Cherry Lane, University City, MO 
Mr. Adams stated that he wished to clarify some of the statements made in Ms. Jan Adams' 
letter to Council regarding the public meeting conducted at Heman Park Community Center on 
August 30th.  He stated that he had been invited to the meeting in his capacity as the State 
Representative for this district.  However, the only subjects he addressed were the rights of 
development and demolition by neglect.  Mr. Adams stated that he specifically did not make 
comments about any candidates running for office, including himself, because he did not want 
anyone to think that he was trying to interfere with the City's progress.    
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Proposed Property Tax Rates  

 
Mayor Welsch opened the public hearing at 6:46 p.m., and hearing no requests to speak the 
hearing was closed at 6:46 p.m. 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Green Practices Commission Update Summary. 
 

Mr. Walker stated that this update was provided during the Study Session, so there was nothing 
more to report. 
 
Mayor Welsch encouraged her colleagues to pass any additional questions or concerns related 
to tonight’s presenation to to Mr. Walker. 

 
 October 10, 2016 E-2-2



3 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. BILL 9292 – An ordinance vacating and surrendering fifteen feet wide north/south public 

alley Right-Of-Way located on the south side of Delmar Boulevard and adjacent to the west 
boundary of Lot 17 of Block 4 of Delmar Heights subdivision and adjacent to the east 
boundary of lots 14, 15 and 16 of Block 4 of Delmar Heights Subdivision; reserving any 
public easements, and directing that this ordinance be recorded in the office of the Recorder 
of Deeds of St. Louis County, Missouri.  Bill 9292 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Glickert moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes:  Councilmembers Jennings, Carr, Crow, Glickert, Smotherson and Mayor Welsch. 
Nays:  None. 

 
2. BILL 9293 – An ordinance amending Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

University City, relating to zoning, by amending Section 400.1740; thereof, relating to the 
Civic Complex Historic District; containing a savings clause and providing a penalty.  Bill 
9293 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Jennings moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes:  Councilmembers Jennings, Carr, Crow, Glickert, Smotherson and Mayor Welsch. 
Nays:  None. 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS  

RESOLUTIONS 
     Introduced by Councilmember Glickert 
1. Resolution 2016 – 23  A resolution approving the 2016 annual property tax rates.  The 

motion was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 

Voice vote on the motion carried unanimously. 
 

BILLS 
     Introduced by Councilmember Smotherson 
2. Bill 9294 – An ordinance amending Section 355.040 – disable parking, Chapter 355 Traffic 

Code, of the University City Municipal Code, to revise traffic regulation as provided herein.  
Bill 9294 was read for the first time. 

 
Mayor Welsch stated that before the next meeting she would like a confirmation on whether 
this ordinance had been reviewed by the Traffic Commission, and a clarification as to whether 
this proposal infringes on any Federal laws related to disabled parking. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated that the intent of his proposal is to supplement the City's 
current ordinance by implementing a system to ensure that residential disabled parking signs 
are only utilized by the resident who was granted approval to have the sign installed.  The 
suggested amendment was taken from a St. Louis City ordinance that addressed this 
particular problem by assigning matching numbers for the posted sign and the disabled 
resident's parking sticker.  Councilmember Smotherson stated that while conducting his 
research he found no Federal law that prohibited this practice.   

 
N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
 October 10, 2016 E-2-3



4 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
 Mayor Welsch made the appointments that were needed. 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 

 Mayor Welsch noted that Council had received some minutes in this week's packet. 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

• Evaluation of City Council Employees:  City Manager and City Clerk 
Discussion and Vote requested by Councilmembers Carr and Crow 
 

Councilmember Carr stated that on June 13th of this year she informed Council of their 
obligation to conduct yearly performance evaluations on its two employees; the City Manager 
and City Clerk.  Therefore, she made a motion that Council initiate these evaluations within 10 
days, and that they be completed within the normal timeframe.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Smotherson. 
 
Councilmember Glickert stated that while he would agree that Council has been lax on 
performing these evaluations, he would like to suggest that the evaluations be initiated within 14 
days rather than 10 days.  Councilmember Carr stated that she would be amenable to 
Councilmember Glickert's amendment.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she also had no problem with Councilmember Carr's motion, but 
believed Council should discuss how the process will be initiated and implemented.  Mayor 
Welsch stated that as a result of her current personal situation she would be unable to work on 
this issue until next week.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that guidelines had been established three years ago, wherein 
Council had completed a list of objectives for the City Manager, but no further action was taken, 
the process was “thrown under the bus”. 
 
Councilmember Jennings requested that he and Councilmember Smotherson be provided with a 
copy of the list of objectives and suggested that a Study Session be established to discuss them 
in more detail. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she would provide Councilmembers Jennings and Smotherson with a 
copy of the objectives.  However, she does not think that the process that initiated in November 
of 2014 was thrown under the bus, but rather, that one Councilmember simply failed to complete 
the process with respect to the City Clerk’s objectives.   
   
Voice vote on Councilmember Carr’s amended motion carried unanimously.   
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Crow complimented the Public Works Department and Ford Asphalt Company 
for the overlay they performed on Maryland Avenue.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson informed Council that the Traffic Commission had been briefed on 
the Centene Project, and his hope is that its impact to residents on Forsyth, Jackson and 
Pershing, was explained to their satisfaction.  He stated that at this point, Council needed to 
carefully review the plans and make a determination as to whether there are any matters that 
need to be addressed prior to granting approval.    
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that the Police Facility Analysis Report conducted by Ross & 
Baruzzini determined that it would be substantially more expensive to renovate and add an October 10, 2016 E-2-4



5 
 

addition to the existing facilities versus developing a new facility on a remote site.  Now that 
Council has received two reports from independent consultants stating that the City would get 
the most bang for its buck by constructing a new police station, he would like to see this project 
move forward with a goal of reducing the amount of time officers have to remain in this 
temporary facility.   
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she had received a number of phone calls regarding the correct 
spelling of Karen Larsen Neilson's name, as identified in the minutes.  Therefore, she asked that 
a copy of Ms. Neilson's LinkedIn page be made a part of the record.  Mayor Welsch also asked 
that a copy of the Attorney General's letter, referenced at the last meeting, and a copy of the City 
Clerk's response to that letter, be made a part of the record.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that Ms. Neilson has personally provided her with the correct 
spelling of her name and asked that she make the correction. 

 
Q. ROLL CALL VOTE TO GO INTO A CLOSED SESSION authorized by Section 610.021 (2) 

Real Estate; according to RSMo 610.021; Real Estate (2). 
 
Councilmember Jennings moved to go into executive session and was seconded by 
Councilmember Glickert. 
 
Councilmember Crow reiterated his comment made at the beginning of the meeting regarding 
his inability to participate in Closed Session discussions via video conference.  He then 
requested that this matter not be discussed until the 1st Ward could be properly represented.   
 
Roll Call Vote:   
AYES:  Councilmembers Jennings, Glickert and Mayor Welsch.   
NAYS:  Councilmembers Smotherson, Carr and Crow. 
(Motion failed) 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 Mayor Welsch adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 Joyce Pumm 
 City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

October 10, 2016 E-2-5



6 
 

October 10, 2016 E-2-6



7 
 

October 10, 2016 E-2-7



8 
 

October 10, 2016 E-2-8



9 
 

October 10, 2016 E-2-9



10 
 

October 10, 2016 E-2-10



11 
 

 

October 10, 2016 E-2-11



 
 
 
 

City Manager’s Report Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:   October 10, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Liquor License for Cicero’s, 6691 Delmar Blvd 
 
AGENDA SECTION:  City Manager’s Report 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :  Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: Cicero’s, has applied for a liquor license as a result of 
changing the management.  Ms. Trisha Jacobs is a new Managing Officer.   
 

• A background check by the Police Department revealed no disqualifying 
information. 

• Department approval was granted from Community Development, with no 
additional comments. 

• Recommendations from University City citizens are included. 
• Commercial occupancy has been applied for and approved. 
• A petition by surrounding property owners was submitted in favor of the license. 
• A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri 

Department of Revenue was received relative to the business. 
• 2015 personal property tax record for the applicant indicate payment of taxes. 
• Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   Background Check 

Department Approvals 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 

October 10, 2016 K-1-1



October 10, 2016 K-1-2



October 10, 2016 K-1-3



October 10, 2016 K-1-4



October 10, 2016 K-1-5



October 10, 2016 K-1-6



October 10, 2016 K-1-7



October 10, 2016 K-1-8



October 10, 2016 K-1-9



October 10, 2016 K-1-10



October 10, 2016 K-1-11



October 10, 2016 K-1-12



October 10, 2016 K-1-13



October 10, 2016 K-1-14



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  October 10, 2016  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: On-Street Disable Parking System 

Changes AGENDA SECTION:   Unfinished Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

The Traffic Commission reviewed a request to approve a change to the On-Street Disable 
Parking system and procedures, to designate a parking space to a specific disable person, 
amend the fine amounts and prohibit long-term parking on disable parking spaces. 

At the September 2016 Traffic Commission meeting, the Traffic Commissioners reviewed 
the request and recommended approval by the City Council. 

The Traffic Code will have to be amended at Section 355.040, Disable Parking. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of this request; therefore amend the Traffic Code Section 
355.040, Disable Parking. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

- Bill amending Section 355.040, Disable Parking 
- Staff Report  

October 10, 2016 L-1-1



STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: September 14, 2016 
APPLICANT: Bwayne Smotherson, 1243 Purdue Ave 
Location:  University City  
Request:  Change Disable Parking Ordinance in University City 
Attachments: Traffic Request Form and Revised Chapter 355.040 

Existing Conditions: 
Currently the Traffic Code includes the below section:  

Section 355.040 Disabled Parking.  
A. It is unlawful for the operator of a vehicle to stop, stand or park any vehicle in a parking space designed for disabled persons if, 
immediately adjacent to and visible from such parking space, there is posted a sign known as the international symbol of 
accessibility consisting of a profile view of a stylized wheelchair with occupant in white on a blue background. 
B. Designated disabled parking spaces may only be used when a disabled person is then, or immediately preceding being parked, 
was an occupant of the motor vehicle bearing the disabled license plate or windshield hanging placard issued to the disabled person 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 301.142, RSMo., or by those states with which the Missouri Director of Revenue has entered 
into reciprocity agreements. 
C. The provisions of Subsections (A) and (B) of this Section shall apply to all off-street parking facilities owned or operated by the 
City or by any privately owned or operated parking lot as well as any on-street disabled parking spaces. 
D. The driver, or any occupant, of a motor vehicle bearing disabled license plates or a windshield hanging placard which is parked 
or has been observed to have been parking in a duly designated disabled parking space shall, upon request from any law 
enforcement officer, produce the disabled registration certificate issued to the disabled person or entity as provided for in Section 
301.142, RSMo., or such other authorization to show that the driver or any occupant of the vehicle is lawfully entitled to use a 
designated disabled parking space. 
E. All disabled persons residing in the City, may request on-street disabled parking on a residential street. On-street disabled 
parking spaces shall be established upon written application by an owner whose motor vehicle bears disabled license plates or a 
windshield hanging placard issued pursuant to Section 301.142, RSMo. Such application shall be subject to City review and will 
not be issued if any existing traffic regulations indicate to the contrary or if the property of the disabled person has a driveway or 
other off-street parking space accessible to the disabled person, unless there are unique circumstances found by the Director of 
Public Works and Parks. 
F. The Director of Public Works and Parks shall issue and keep a log of all on-street disabled parking. 
G. Any person who parks in a space reserved for physically disabled persons and is not displaying distinguishing license plates or a 
card is guilty of an infraction and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor 
more than three hundred dollars ($300.00). Any vehicle which has been removed and which is not properly claimed within thirty 
(30) days thereafter shall be considered to be an abandoned vehicle. 

Request: 

Revise the Traffic Code Chapter 355.040, to add provisions to assign permit numbers to a 
resident’s approved disable parking signs with matching car stickers. 

Conclusion/Recommendation: 

City Staff recommends approval of the proposed changes as shown in the attached draft revision. 

October 10, 2016 L-1-2

http://www.ucitymo.org/
http://www.ecode360.com/28291807%2328291807
http://www.ecode360.com/28291808%2328291808
http://www.ecode360.com/28291809%2328291809
http://www.ecode360.com/28291810%2328291810
http://www.ecode360.com/28291808%2328291808
http://www.ecode360.com/28291809%2328291809
http://www.ecode360.com/28291811%2328291811
http://www.ecode360.com/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/28291813%2328291813
http://www.ecode360.com/28291814%2328291814


October 10, 2016 L-1-3



Chapter 355. Stopping, Standing or Parking Prohibited in 
Specified Places 

Section 355.040. Disabled Parking. 

A. It is unlawful for the operator of a vehicle to stop, stand or park any vehicle in a parking space 
designed for disabled persons if, immediately adjacent to and visible from such parking space, 
there is posted a sign known as the international symbol of accessibility consisting of a profile 
view of a stylized wheelchair with occupant in white on a blue background. 

B. Designated disabled parking spaces may only be used when a disabled person is then, or 
immediately preceding being parked, was an occupant of the motor vehicle bearing the disabled 
license plate or windshield hanging placard issued to the disabled person pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 301.142, RSMo., or by those states with which the Missouri Director of 
Revenue has entered into reciprocity agreements. 

C. The provisions of Subsections (A) and (B) of this Section shall apply to all off-street parking 
facilities owned or operated by the City or by any privately owned or operated parking lot as 
well as any on-street disabled parking spaces. 

D. The driver, or any occupant, of a motor vehicle bearing disabled license plates or a windshield 
hanging placard which is parked or has been observed to have been parking in a duly designated 
disabled parking space shall, upon request from any law enforcement officer, produce the 
disabled registration certificate issued to the disabled person or entity as provided for in Section 
301.142, RSMo., or such other authorization to show that the driver or any occupant of the 
vehicle is lawfully entitled to use a designated disabled parking space. 

E.  Any person who parks in a space reserved for physically disabled persons and is not 
displaying distinguishing license plates or a card is guilty of an infraction and upon conviction 
thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than two 
hundred twenty-five dollars ($225.00). Any vehicle which has been removed and which is not 
properly claimed within thirty (30) days thereafter shall be considered to be an abandoned 
vehicle. 

F. All disabled persons residing in the City, may request on-street disabled parking on a 
residential street. On-street disabled parking spaces shall be established upon written application 
by an owner whose motor vehicle bears disabled license plates or a windshield hanging placard 
issued pursuant to Section 301.142, RSMo. Such application shall be subject to City review and 
will not be issued if any existing traffic regulations indicate to the contrary or if the property of 
the disabled person has a driveway or other off-street parking space accessible to the disabled 
person, unless there are unique circumstances found by the Director of Public Works and Parks. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

October 10, 2016 L-1-4

http://www.ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28291807%2328291766
http://www.ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28291807%2328291766
http://www.ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28291807%2328291807
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291808%2328291808
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291809%2328291809
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291810%2328291810
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291808%2328291808
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291809%2328291809
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291811%2328291811
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812%2328291812


F. G. If the application is approved, a numbered permit shall be issued to the applicant and shall 
be posted on the windshield of said vehicle.  The permit must be used at all times with the permit 
holder’s permanent disabled placard or license plate.  The City shall install signs indicating such 
restricted parking space on any public right-of-way for a period of time not to exceed two (2) 
years subject to bi-annual renewal. The permit must have the corresponding permit number that 
is displayed on the signs.  

H. The applicant must observe and obey any other parking restrictions which may apply at the 
approved location (i.e. Street Cleaning signs). 

I. The privilege of a disabled parking space will be immediately discontinued with misuse of any 
kind. 

J. The permitted parking space shall not be used for long-term storage of vehicles. The vehicle 
must be kept in good repair and shall be operational. For the purposes of this Section, long-term 
storage of vehicles is defined as any vehicle parked or left standing on a public street in the same 
location and not driven or moved in excess of fourteen consecutive calendar days. If an applicant 
is unable to move his or her vehicle within the fourteen day period, the applicant shall request an 
extension of the fourteen day period from the City Director of Public Works and Parks. The 
Director shall only grant an extension upon the applicant’s showing of good cause. An extension 
shall be limited to thirty days from the day it was granted. Each applicant shall be limited to 
three extensions per year.   

K. The permitted parking space is for use solely by the applicant and their personal vehicle; it is 
not intended as parking or a loading zone for friends, relatives or visitors. If another vehicle uses 
this space, the illegally parked vehicle may receive a ticket of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) 
nor more than two hundred and twenty-five dollars ($225.00). 

L. The Director of Public Works and Parks shall issue and keep a log of all on-street disabled 
parking. 

G. Any person who parks in a space reserved for physically disabled persons and is not 
displaying distinguishing license plates or a card is guilty of an infraction and upon conviction 
thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than three 
hundred dollars ($300.00). Any vehicle which has been removed and which is not properly 
claimed within thirty (30) days thereafter shall be considered to be an abandoned vehicle. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
At least 12.75 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

October 10, 2016 L-1-5



INTRODUCED BY:  Councilmember Smotherson DATE:   September 26, 2016 

BILL NO.     9294 ORDINANCE NO.___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 355.040 – 
DISABLE PARKING, CHAPTER 355 TRAFFIC CODE, OF 
THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TO REVISE 
TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 355.040, Disable Parking of Chapter 355 of the Traffic Code, of the 
University City Municipal Code is amended as provided herein. Language to be deleted 
from the Code is represented as stricken through; language to be added to the Code is 
emphasized. This Ordinance contemplates no revisions to the Code other than those so 
designated; any language or provisions from the Code omitted from this Ordinance is 
represented by an ellipsis and remains in full force and effect.  

Section 2. Chapter 355 of the University City Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
change the Disable Parking system to designate a parking space to a specific disable 
person, amending the fine amounts and prohibiting long-term parking on disable parking 
spaces, to the Traffic Code – Section 355.040, as follows: 

Chapter 355. Stopping, Standing or Parking Prohibited in Specified Places 

Section 355.040. Disabled Parking. 

A. It is unlawful for the operator of a vehicle to stop, stand or park any vehicle in a 
parking space designed for disabled persons if, immediately adjacent to and visible from 
such parking space, there is posted a sign known as the international symbol of 
accessibility consisting of a profile view of a stylized wheelchair with occupant in white 
on a blue background. 

B. Designated disabled parking spaces may only be used when a disabled person is 
then, or immediately preceding being parked, was an occupant of the motor vehicle 
bearing the disabled license plate or windshield hanging placard issued to the disabled 
person pursuant to the provisions of Section 301.142, RSMo., or by those states with 
which the Missouri Director of Revenue has entered into reciprocity agreements. 

C. The provisions of Subsections (A) and (B) of this Section shall apply to all off-street 
parking facilities owned or operated by the City or by any privately owned or operated 
parking lot as well as any on-street disabled parking spaces. 

October 10, 2016 L-1-6

http://www.ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28291807#28291766
http://www.ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28291807#28291807
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291808#28291808
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291809#28291809
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291810#28291810
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291808#28291808
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291809#28291809


D. The driver, or any occupant, of a motor vehicle bearing disabled license plates or a 
windshield hanging placard which is parked or has been observed to have been parking 
in a duly designated disabled parking space shall, upon request from any law 
enforcement officer, produce the disabled registration certificate issued to the disabled 
person or entity as provided for in Section 301.142, RSMo., or such other authorization 
to show that the driver or any occupant of the vehicle is lawfully entitled to use a 
designated disabled parking space. 
 
E.  Any person who parks in a space reserved for physically disabled persons and is not 
displaying distinguishing license plates or a card is guilty of an infraction and upon 
conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor 
more than two hundred twenty-five dollars ($225.00). Any vehicle which has been 
removed and which is not properly claimed within thirty (30) days thereafter shall be 
considered to be an abandoned vehicle. 
  
F. All disabled persons residing in the City, may request on-street disabled parking on a 
residential street. On-street disabled parking spaces shall be established upon written 
application by an owner whose motor vehicle bears disabled license plates or a 
windshield hanging placard issued pursuant to Section 301.142, RSMo. Such 
application shall be subject to City review and will not be issued if any existing traffic 
regulations indicate to the contrary or if the property of the disabled person has a 
driveway or other off-street parking space accessible to the disabled person, unless 
there are unique circumstances found by the Director of Public Works and Parks. 
 
G. If the application is approved, a numbered permit shall be issued to the applicant and 
shall be posted on the windshield of said vehicle.  The permit must be used at all times 
with the permit holder’s permanent disabled placard or license plate.  The City shall 
install signs indicating such restricted parking space on any public right-of-way for a 
period of time not to exceed two (2) years subject to bi-annual renewal. The permit must 
have the corresponding permit number that is displayed on the signs.  
 
H. The applicant must observe and obey any other parking restrictions which may apply 
at the approved location (i.e. Street Cleaning signs). 
 
I. The privilege of a disabled parking space will be immediately discontinued with 
misuse of any kind. 
 
J. The permitted parking space shall not be used for long-term storage of vehicles. The 
vehicle must be kept in good repair and shall be operational. For the purposes of this 
Section, long-term storage of vehicles is defined as any vehicle parked or left standing 
on a public street in the same location and not driven or moved in excess of fourteen 
consecutive calendar days. If an applicant is unable to move his or her vehicle within 
the fourteen day period, the applicant shall request an extension of the fourteen day 
period from the City Director of Public Works and Parks. The Director shall only grant an 
extension upon the applicant’s showing of good cause. An extension shall be limited to 
thirty days from the day it was granted. Each applicant shall be limited to three 
extensions per year.   
 

October 10, 2016 L-1-7

http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291811#28291811
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812
http://www.ecode360.com/print/28291812#28291812


K. The permitted parking space is for use solely by the applicant and their personal 
vehicle; it is not intended as parking or a loading zone for friends, relatives or visitors. If 
another vehicle uses this space, the illegally parked vehicle may receive a ticket of not 
less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than two hundred and twenty-five dollars 
($225.00). 
 
L. The Director of Public Works and Parks shall issue and keep a log of all on-street 
disabled parking. 
 
G. Any person who parks in a space reserved for physically disabled persons and is not 
displaying distinguishing license plates or a card is guilty of an infraction and upon 
conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor 
more than three hundred dollars ($300.00). Any vehicle which has been removed and 
which is not properly claimed within thirty (30) days thereafter shall be considered to be 
an abandoned vehicle. 
 

 
* * * 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of the sections revised 
by this amendment nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 
Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be punished in accordance with the provisions of the University City 
Municipal Code. 
 
Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 
 
      
 
 

PASSED THIS________day of____________2016 
 
 

___________________________________  
    MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 

October 10, 2016 L-1-8

http://www.ecode360.com/28291814#28291814


 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 

October 10, 2016 L-1-9



                    Council Agenda Item Cover  
___________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                            
 
MEETING DATE:  October 10, 2016                             
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Amending Chapter 2.52 of the University City Municipal  
    Code relating to the Committee for Access and Local  
    Origination Programming (CALOP) 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   New Business  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    At the August 25, 2016 CALOP Commission meeting, the 
Board has approved an amendment to the University City Municipal Code, Chapter 2.52 
relating to the Committee for Access and Local Origination Programming (CALOP).  
The amending is to remove Charter Cable Company from the ordinance since the 
Board is no longer working with  the Cable Company. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:  Meeting minutes August 25, 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 

October 10, 2016 M-1-1



 

1 
  

 

CALOP Commission Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, August 25, 2016 

University City, U City Library, Auditorium 

6:00 PM 
 

Members in Attendance: Patricia McQueen, David Stokes, Kymal Dockett, Beth 

Norton; Claire Linzee; Dennis Riggs 

 

Members Excused: Bob Wilcox 

 

Others in Attendance: Mayor Welsch; Patrick Wall; Keri Berjer 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Ms. McQueen, Chairperson, at 6:03 pm.  

 

Approval of Agenda  

Ms. Norton moved to approve the agenda and seconded by Mrs. Linzee.  The motion 

carried unanimously.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made to approve the July 28, 2016 minutes by Ms. Norton and seconded 

by Mrs. Linzee.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 

Treasurer’s Report 
Mrs. Berjer reported the Treasurer’s Report as of July 28, 2016. A motion was made to 

approve the Treasurer’s Report by Mr. Stokes and seconded by Mrs. Linzee.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Agenda Items 
1.  Go-Getter Productions gave a 10 minute presentation asking for the final 

installment of their grant award in the amount of $6,000.  CALOP strongly 

supports the project; however has decided to maintain the contract until the 

project is complete.  A motion was made by Mr. Stokes to not pay the $6,000 

final installment until the grant is completed.  It was seconded by Mrs. Linzee and 

carried unanimously. 

2. A discussion took place on extending the dates on the RFP to October 28, 2016.  

The Board decided to extend the dates, and the RFP will be reposted to the 

website, among other places. 

3. Mr. Stokes made a motion to change the CALOP Ordinance to remove Charter 

Cable Company from the Ordinance since the Board is no longer working the 

Cable Company.  Mrs. Linzee seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.  

The new Ordinance will be presented at the next City Council Meeting. 

4. A discussion took place on the next grant round planning and was decided to hold 

off until the November 2016 meeting to further discuss. 

 

Council Comments 

Ms. McQueen reported that the Johnnie Be Good project is now complete pending some 

minor tweaks.  The Board should be receiving a copy of the film to review soon. 

 

October 10, 2016 M-1-2

tcharumilind
Highlight



 

2 
  

 

A private discussion took place on an email received by the Board. 

 

Ms. McQueen reported that Mrs. Linzee will be resigning from CALOP.  Her seat will be 

re-appointed. 

 

Next Meeting Date (Tentative) 

The next meeting is scheduled for September 22, 2016, at 6:00 pm.  Location is U City 

Library – Auditorium.     

 

Adjournment 

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 7:22pm by Mr. Stokes and seconded by 

Ms. Norton.  The motion carried unanimously.   

October 10, 2016 M-1-3



 2 

 
INTRODUCED BY:      DATE:  October 10, 2016 
 
BILL NO.   9295     ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.52 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE COMMITTEE FOR ACCESS AND 
LOCAL ORIGINATION PROGRAMMING, BY REPEALING SECTION 
2.52.050 THEREOF, RELATING TO MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT, 
AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION TO BE KNOWN AS 
“SECTION 2.52.050 MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT,” THEREBY 
AMENDING SAID SECTION SO AS TO REMOVE CHARTER 
COMMUNICATIONS; REFERRED TO AS “THE COMPANY”. 

 
        BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  
        MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Chapter 2.52 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the 
Committee for Access and Local Origination Programming, is hereby amended by repealing 
Section 2.52.050 thereof, relating to membership and appointment, and enacting in lieu thereof a 
new section to be known as “Section 2.52.050 Membership and appointment,” thereby amending 
said section so as to remove Charter Communications; so that said section, as so amended, shall 
read as follows: 
 
2.52.050 Membership and appointment. 
 
CALOP shall consist of seven voting members, appointed by the city council, who shall each 
serve a three-year term. The remainder of the members shall be selected by the city council upon 
the recommendation by either members of the city council, city staff or any resident citizen of 
the city.  In addition to the seven voting members of CALOP there shall be three nonvoting ex 
officio members: one will be a member of the city council; one will be appointed by the 
University City School District; and one will be appointed by the Higher Education Consortium 
of Metropolitan St. Louis.  Ex officio members shall receive all minutes of all meetings of 
CALOP, and may submit written reports and recommendations.  Ex officio members may 
comment during any public discussion segment of any meeting. 
 
 Section 2. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relief any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of Chapter 2.52, Section 
2.52.050, nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 
 Section 3. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalty provided in Chapter 1.12, 
Section 1.12.010 of the University City Municipal Code. 
 
 Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 
 
  
 
PASSED this _________ day of _________________________, 2016. 

October 10, 2016 M-1-4



 3 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
       MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY       
 
 

October 10, 2016 M-1-5



Meeting minutes of the Board of Trustees for the University City Public Library for 
June 8, 2016 

 
Members Present: Edmund Acosta, Dorothy Davis, Luise Hoffman, LaTrice Johnson, Joy Lieberman, 
Rubina Stewart-McCadney, Rosalind Turner 

Members Absent:  Deborah Arbogast, Joan Greco-Cohen 

City Council Liaison:  absent 

Library Staff:  Patrick Wall – Director, Christa Van Herreweghe, Cynthia Scott 

The meeting was called to order at 5:15pm by Edmund Acosta, President 

Citizen Concern – A patron attended the meeting to complain to the board about poor customer service. 
After much discussion and many apologies, she was satisfied that the matter was resolved and would 
not happen again. She left the meeting at 5:50pm. 
 
Minutes - The minutes from the May 11, 2016 meeting were approved. 
 
Correspondence – We received a $150 check from the Friends of the library in honor of the Thomas 
Family, for their work at Trivia Night, A $40 check was received from a patron in appreciation of our 
reference staff.  
 
Friends’ Report – Trivia Night was very successful. The Library table won.  
 
Council Liaison Report – None. 
 
Librarian’s Report – Written report was reviewed.  
 
Discussion Items – were discussed. 
 
Action Items –  
. The Board approved allowing River Styx to charge a fee for workshops held here. 
. Motion to replace our 20 year old, damaged auditorium screen with one from Tech Electronics 
at a cost of $4,493.68 was approved unanimously. 
. Motion to replace our file server with CDW-G server at a cost of $6,145.55 passed unanimously. 
. The 2016-2017 Annual Budget was reviewed by the Budget Committee yesterday. They 
proposed approving the budget with a 3% pay increase for library staff. A motion was made, seconded, 
and approved unanimously. 
 
President’s Report –This being the last regular meeting of the fiscal year, thank you to the Board for 
their wonderful work. 
 
Committee Reports – None. The Long Range Planning Committee will meet on Tuesday, June 21st at 
2pm. 
 
The next Board meeting will be Wednesday, September 28, 2016 at 5:15pm. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:50pm.   

October 10, 2016 O3-1-1



 

Page 1 of 2 

Board of Adjustment 

May 16, 2016 Meeting Minutes 

(approved 9-19-16) 

 

A Board of Adjustment meeting was held on Monday May 16, 2016 at the Heman Park Community 

Center located at 975 Pennsylvania Ave., University City, Missouri. The meeting commenced at 

6:45 pm. 

 

Members Present    Members Absent (excused) 

John Solodar, Chairperson   Roger McFarland 

Deborah Arbogast, Vice-Chairperson 

Kathy Straatmann    Non-Voting Members Absent 

Peggy Holly     Rod Jennings, Council Liaison 

Charles Marentette, Alternate 

 

Staff Present 

Raymond Lai, Deputy Director of Community Development 

Zach Greatens, Planner 

 

1. Approval of Minutes 

 

The minutes from the April 18, 2016 Board of Adjustment meeting were approved. 

 

2. Case # BOA 16-02 – 7018 Delmar Blvd. 

 

Mr. Stephen Wurst, property owner of 7018 Delmar Blvd., requested a variance to construct 

a detached garage maintaining a side yard setback of one and one-half (1.5) feet in lieu of 

five (5) feet from the western property boundary as required by Sections 400.160.B and 

400.1090.A of the Zoning Code. 

 

Mr. Wurst explained the situation with the existing detached garage that was severely 

damaged when a tree fell on it during a storm several months ago.  The tree also damaged 

their fence and retaining wall near the garage and both of those structures needed repairs.  

Their proposal was to rebuild the detach garage in the same dimensions as the existing 

garage and to use the existing foundation, rather than pour a new foundation.  Mr. Wurst 

stated that the portion of the yard to the east of the garage was at a higher elevation than the 

garage with a retaining wall.  To attempt to build the garage in compliance with the five foot 

setback from the western property boundary, it would require demolishing the existing 

retaining wall and excavating out a significant amount of the yard and build a new retaining 

wall. 

 

Mr. Ron Keeven, the property owner’s contractor, was also present.  Mr. Keeven stated that 

the proposal was to rebuild what was there.  He added that in order to construct the garage as 

planned it would have to be placed in the exact location and foundation as the existing 

garage. 

 

Board members discussed the proposal and the concerns about future maintenance and 

repairs on the west side of the garage.  One and a half feet of setback would not allow 

October 10, 2016 O3-2-1



 

Page 2 of 2 

enough room for maintenance and would require accessing the adjacent property.  It would 

either require an easement on the adjacent property or shifting the garage to the east. 

 

Public Comments – Peter Mueller, property owner of 7022 Delmar Boulevard, the adjacent 

property to the west, stated that he would be willing to grant Mr. Wurst an easement to allow 

access onto his property in order to carry out any future maintenance or repairs to the 

garage. 

 

The variance request was approved by a vote of five (5) to zero (0) with the condition that a 

permanent easement be executed on the neighbor’s property to the west (7022 Delmar) to 

allow the property owner(s) at 7018 Delmar the ability to access the west side of the garage 

for maintenance and repairs. 

 

3. Adjournment 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

 

October 10, 2016 O3-2-2



UNIVERSITYCITYCOUNCIL
STUDYSESSION
5thfloorofCityHall

6801Delmar
August12, 2013

6:00p.m.  

thTheCityCouncilStudySessionwasheldintheCouncilChamber, 5 floorofCityHall, on
August12, 2013.  MayorShelleyWelschcalledtheStudySessiontoorderat6:00p.m.  In
additiontotheMayor, thefollowingmembersoftheCouncilwerepresent:  

Ms. PauletteCarr
Mr. SteveKraft
Mr. ArthurSharpe, Jr.  
Mr. MichaelGlickert
Mr. TerryCrow
Mr. ByronPrice

AlsoinattendancewasCityManagerLehmanWalker.   

MayorWelschopenedtheStudySession notingtheCouncilwouldbevotingonwhichCity
ManagerandCityClerkperformanceevaluationformtobeusedfor2012/2013.  

Mr. SharpemovedtoaccepttheCityManager’sevaluationformsubmittedbyCarr/Crowand
themotionwassecondedbyMs. Carr.    

MayorWelschstatedherconcernwiththeCarr/Crowformisthatitdoesnotevaluatehowthe
CityManagerhandlesthedailyroutinesofhisjobsinceisfocusessolelyonthegoalsfromlast
year.  However, shewillsupportthemajorityonthis.    

RollCallvoteforacceptanceofCarr/CrowCityManager’sEvaluationformwas:  
AYES:  Mr. Price, Ms. Carr, Mr. Kraft, Mr. Crow, Mr. Glickert, Mr. SharpeadMayorWelsch
NAYS:  none

Mr. GlickertsaidtheCouncilapprovedtheCarr/Crowformthatwillbeusedinevaluating the
CityManagerfor2013.  Hethendiscussedtheprocessoffillingouttheformandtheavenuefor
howitwouldbedone.  Mr. Glickertstatedhewouldliketokeepitthesamewayithasbeenfor
atleastthelastsevenyearsthathehasbeenonCouncil.  Hesaidmemberswouldfilloutthe
form, putinitinamanilaenvelopeandthensenditbacktotheCityHall/Mayor’sofficetobe
held forameeting, orbee-mailedtotheMayor.  Mr. Glickert saidthenatatimetobe
determined, Councilcanmeettoprocesstheevaluationforms.    

MayorWelschnotedthatwasthesamepoint madeonthefrontsheetofCarr/CrowCity
Managerform.    

Mr. Sharpesaidhewouldliketomakesurethat would notonlydoneonayearlybasisbut
ratherdoitonaquarterlybasis, thusprovidingCityManagerandCityClerksomeideaasto
wheretheyareastheyearproceeds.    

MayorWelschstatedshehadnoproblemwiththatbutalsoapartofthisprocesswastocome
upwiththegoalsfornextyear.    

1
October 10, 2016 O4-1-1



Ms. CarrsecondedMr. Sharpe’ssuggestionandalsofelttheywouldneed tohaveagoal
developingstudysession.    

Mr. Glickertaskediftherewasatimeframeastowhentheformswouldbeofferedandwhen
theywouldneedtobereturned.  MayorWelschnotedthatwassomethingCouncilwouldhave
todecideinthisprocess.  ShesuggestedthatmemberssubmitideasandCouncilcanputthem
togetherandfromthiscreateadraftofhowCouncil’sreviewprocesswouldbehandled.    

Mr. GlickertopenedthediscussionfortheCityClerk’stwoevaluationformssubmitted:  one
submittedbySharpe/GlickertandonefromCarr/Crow.    

MayorWelschwentonrecordagainstatingshepreferredtheonethatlookedbothatthegoals
thatweresetfortheCityClerklastyearandalsoevaluatedhowtheCityClerkhandlesherdaily
duties – thisis intheGlickert/Sharpeform.  Shesaidtheformwasveryspecificaboutjob
responsibilitiesthatCouncilcancommentonandthenspecificallyasksaboutgoalssetoutlast
year.  

Ms. Carrsaidbothformslooked attasksandgoalsandanother problemshehad with
Glickert/Sharpeformwasthatitonlyaddressed nineofthegoalsandnotallofthem.  In
additionshesaiditlumpedalotofthingstogether.  Shestatedifshehadfourcriteriagroupedin
anareaonwhichtobaseherscore, shemayweightsomethingmoreheavilythatshefelt
neededimprovementinsteadofgivinganindividualscoretoeachone.  Ms. Carrsaidthe
evaluationwouldnotnecessarilyreflectthequalityofalltheworkortasksbeingevaluated.  She
saidbothformsaddressedbothtasksandgoals.  

Mr. GlickertaskedtheCityClerkiftherewereelevengoals providedtoherlastyear.  Ms.  
Pummagreedandnotedthatshewastoldtheothertwogoalswereincorporatedinprevious
criteriaquestions.  Mr. Glickertsaidthatwastrueandtheycouldputtheothertwogoalsbackin
ifthatwaswhatCouncilwantediftheychosethisform.    

Mr. SharpemovedtoaccepttheCityClerk’sappraisalformsubmittedbyGlickert/Sharpeand
themotionwassecondedbyMr. Kraft.    

Mr. Priceaskedaboutaformatissue, ifthegroupingcould beseparatedandevaluated
separately.    

MayorWelschsaidthedifferenceshesawwas intheother formtheitemswere graded
separatelyandonGlickert/Sharpeform, itemsweregroupedintocategoriestobegradedasa
category.  

Ms. Carrsaidthatwasaproblemforher; theaggregatingofitemsintocategories.  Shenoted
that oneitem may beweakandeventhougheverythingelsewasverystrongsheprobably
wouldfocusherratingontheonethingshethoughtwasweak.  Ms. Carrsaidbyaggregating
andhavingonescoreforseveralcriteriadidnotconveyenoughinformationtoCouncil’s
employees.  

2
October 10, 2016 O4-1-2



MayorWelschstatedhersameconcernasontheCityManager’sformwasthateverythingwas
giventhesameweightwhichshehadaproblemwiththatbutwouldgowiththemajority.  

Mr. PriceaskedtheCityClerkifshewouldprefertoberatedonallornone.  Ms. Pummstated
thatwasaloadedquestion.  Mr. Pricenotedthatifeverythingwasinthesamepilehecouldsay
oneitemwasabigdealforhimsohecouldskewthegradescalebyonly ratingonthatone
itemofconcern.  Hewouldgivesomeatwobuteverythingelseafivesobyratingindividuallyit
wouldbe4.75versushimgivinga2.8fortheaggregate.  

Mr. GlickertsaidifsomeonewasfixatingonanareaasMr. Pricealluded to, theycouldput
somethinginthecommentsectiontothateffectthattheygradedthatwaybecausetheywould
liketoaddsomethingtothatparticulararea, ormakethecalculationthesamewayasonthe
otherforms.     

MotiontoaccepttheGlickert/SharpeCityClerkPerformanceReviewformwas:  
AYE:  Ms. Carr, Mr. Kraft, Mr. Crow, Mr. Glickert, Mr. Sharpe, Mr. PriceandMayorWelsch
NAYS:  none

Basedonwhatwassaid, MayorWelschaskedifCouncilcouldreturntheformsbynextCouncil
meeting, September9, 2013.    

Mr. GlickertaskedwhentheformswouldbesentoutandtheCityClerksaidtheycouldbesent
outthenextday.    

Ms. Carraskediftheycouldbesentoutelectronicallyasanalternativesotheycouldbefilled- 
outandreturnedelectronically.    

Itwasagreedthattheformscouldbefilledoutelectronically – Ms. Pummwillcreatean
ADOBLEfillableform - savedandreturnedbye-mailtoMayorWelschmarkedCONFIDENTIAL
ontheSubjectLine.  OthersshouldbemailedtoMayorWelschatCityHall.  

MayorWelschstatedshewillsendoutamemoaskingCouncilmemberstosend her some
suggestedgoalsfortheCityManagerandtheCityClerkthatcanbeputcompiledtobe
consideredatagoalsettingstudysession.    

Thestudysessionadjournedat6:17P.M.  

JoycePumm, MRCC/CMC
CityClerk

3
October 10, 2016 O4-1-3



MINUTESOFUNIVERSITYCITYCOUNCIL
SPECIALSESSION

CityHall, secondfloorconferenceroom
continuedonthefifthfloorafterClosedSession

6801DelmarBlvd
6:00p.m.  

November4, 2013

ASpecialSessionoftheCityCouncilofUniversityCityheldinCityHall, secondfloor,  
November4, 2013, at6:17p.m.  InadditiontoMayorWelschthefollowingmembersof
Councilwerepresent.  

Mr. ByronPrice
Ms. PauletteCarr
Mr. StephenKraft
Mr. TerryCrow
Mr. MichaelGlickert
Mr. ArthurSharpe, Jr.  

MayorWelschaskedforaRollCallvotetoproceedintoaClosedSessiontodiscuss
610.021Personnel – Hiring, firing, discipliningorpromotingofparticularemployeesbya
publicgovernmentalbody, whenpersonalinformationabouttheemployeeisdiscussed
orrecorded.  Asusedinthissubdivision, theterm “personalinformation” means
informationrelatingtotheperformanceormeritofindividualemployees.  

RollCallVotetogointoClosedSessionwas:  

AYES:  Mr. Price, Ms. Carr, Mr. Kraft, Mr. Crow, Mr. Glickert, Mr. SharpeandMayor
Welsch
NAYS:  none

SpecialSessionwasadjournedtoenterintoaClosedSessionat6:20p.m.  

1October 10, 2016 O4-1-4



ASpecial SessionoftheCityCouncilofUniversityCityheldinCityHall, fifthfloor,  
November4, 2013.  MayorShelleyWelschreconvenedtheSpecialSessionmeetingto
orderat6:55p.m.  InadditiontoMayorWelschthefollowingmembersofCouncilwere
present:  

Mr. StephenKraft
Mr. ArthurSharpe, Jr.   
Mr. MichaelGlickert
Ms. PauletteCarr
Mr. TerryCrow
Mr. ByronPrice

MayorWelschdistributedgoalsfor2013-2014fortheCityManagerandtheCityClerk.   
ThegoalslistedwereacompilationofallgoalspreviouslysubmittedbytheMayorand
Councilmembers.  MayorWelschexplainedtheCityManager’sgoalspresentedfell
under specificcategories:  FiscalManagement, EconomicDevelopment, Customer
Service, CommunityOutreach/Communications, CapitalImprovementPlan, Public
SafetyandAdministrative.  Shesaidthatindividualcommentsandgroupcomments,  
withthesamesubject, wherenotedbyacolorcodewhichappearedonthefrontpage.   
MayorWelschsaidtheCityManager’sgoalsfellintospecificcategoriesbetterthanthe
CityClerk’ssoshewouldstartwithreviewingtheCityManager’sgoals.  

FISCALMANAGEMENTwasthefirstdiscussed.  Followingistheconsensusofgoalsto
beused:  

SubmitabalancedbudgetthatmaximizesCityservices.  
ContinuerefiningtheorganizationalstructureoftheCitydepartmentstoensure
efficientandeffectiveservicestoresidents.  
Combine, “Showcontinueimprovementinthedevelopmentoffinancial
documentation, withthegoalofcreatinganeasilyunderstandablebudget
documentandsupportingfinancialdocuments” with “Developaquarterly
budgetaryanalysisthatiseasilycomprehensibletoCouncilandpublic”  
Assessandrefineparametersofbudgetauthorizationfrominitialsubmissionof
proposaltoCouncilauthorizationofCityManagertosignthecontract.  Ms. Carr
wasaskedtoprovidemoredescriptionatthenextmeeting.\  
Combine, “Starttheprocesstoreconfigurecurrentemployeepensionplansfor
longtermfinancialstability.  Presentpossiblechangesthatincludechangingtoa
definedcontributionplanfornewandrecenthires” with “Provideinformationon
howtoreconfigurecurrentemployeepensionplans, ifrecommended, including
ananalysisoflong-termpensioncosts”.  ItwassuggestedtochangeStartto
Continue.  

ECONOMICDEVELOPMENTwasthenextareadiscussed.  Followingisthe
consensusofgoalstobeused.  

Formalizeaplanforeconomicdevelopment, separatefromtheComprehensive
PlantargetingthreeareasoftheCity.  Thisplanshouldincludeprogresstowards
measurablegoals (e.g. jobcreation, attractionofnewresidents, increaseinsales
taxes, etc.) inthenextfiveyears.    
Implementaprocessforregularsolicitationofresidentfeedbackoneconomic
developmentprocessinUniversityCity.  

2October 10, 2016 O4-1-5



ContinuetocommunicatewithCouncilonanyandallaccomplishmentsas
alignedwithComprehensivePlanof2005toincludeadditions.    
Mr. GlickertnotedthekeywordwasPlanwhetheritwasthe2005oranew
ComprehensivePlan.  
ContinuenodedevelopmentatNorth/SouthatOlive, KingslandatOliveand
KingslandatVernonandattaincompletionby2015.    
Mr. GlickertnotedthatlistshouldincludeanyoftheCityownedproperty.  

MayorWelschandMs. Carragreedtomeettorefineandconsolidategoalswhere
possiblefortheCityManageranddothesamewiththeCityClerk’sgoalslisted.  They
willthencomebacktoCouncilwithasuggestedlistofgoalsfortheCityManagerand
theCityClerk.  

Themeetingwasadjournedat7:35p.m.  

JoycePumm, MRCC/MCC
CityClerk

3October 10, 2016 O4-1-6


	October 10. 2016 agenda
	2016-09-26 Study - Green Practices presentation
	2016-09-26 Study - Green Practices presentation
	September 26, 2016

	Green Practices Study presentation
	160926 GPC City Council Study Session
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18



	2016-09-26 Reg min
	CM #1 Cicero liquor license
	Agenda Item - Cicero's
	Application-Cicero's

	Bill 9294 Disabled parking
	CM - Disabled Parking
	Staff Report - Disable Parking
	Section 355.040 Disabled Parking.
	Proposed Disabled Parking Ord..pdf
	UChapter 355. Stopping, Standing or Parking Prohibited in Specified PlacesU
	USection 355.040. Disabled Parking.U



	Bill 9294  Disable Parking
	Chapter 355. Stopping, Standing or Parking Prohibited in Specified Places
	Section 355.040. Disabled Parking.



	BILL 9295 Change to CALOP commission
	#1 Library June 2016 Board Meeting minutes
	#2 BOA_Minutes_2016_05_16_Approved
	agenda adds
	2013-08-12 study evaluation forms
	2013-11-04 Special City Council Session




